Curriculum Vitae

Scott A. Bass, Ph.D.

August 2019

SCOTT A. BASS, Ph.D.

4400 Massachusetts Avenue NW Washington, D.C 20016 Kerwin Hall 109-H Office: 202-885-6305

E-mail: sbass@american.edu

Contents

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS	
ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACADEMIC POSITIONS	3
Administrative Positions	3
Academic Appointments	
Other Professional Experience	8
HONORS AND AWARDS	9
Honors	9
Awards	10
PUBLICATIONS	
Books	11
Book Chapters	12
Journal Articles and Other Articles	14
Monographs and Research Reports	18
PRESENTATIONS	21
Refereed Academic Papers and Sessions	21
Presentations, Lectures, Discussions	27
Radio and Television Presentations	36
Films	37
SELECTED SERVICE	37
Selected University Service	37
Selected Professional and Public Service	40
Journal Editor	40
Editorial Boards	40
Reviewer	40
Board Memberships	41
Professional Service	4]

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS

Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.), University of Michigan, 1976 Combined Program in Education and Psychology Specialization, Community Psychology

Master of Arts (M.A.), University of Michigan, 1973 Clinical Psychology

Bachelor of Arts (B.A.), University of Michigan, 1971 Psychology

Teaching Certification, Michigan, 1971 Certification Fields: Secondary Education; Special Education, Emotional Disabilities

ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACADEMIC POSITIONS

Administrative Positions

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY

Provost Emeritus (July 2018-Present)

Executive Director, Center for University Excellence (CUE) (July 2019-Present)

Executive Director of a research center charged by the AU Board of Trustees and President to engage in the great challenges facing higher education institutions. CUE will focus its research efforts on a select range of topics to be studied over time and with some depth. CUE, by design, engages a multi-disciplinary team that includes active research scholars as well as current and former administrators who have deep knowledge of the administration and governance of higher education. CUE will examine three overarching areas of inquiry. They include:

- Extremism, Polarization, and Conflict in Higher Education in the U.S. and Globally
- Undergraduate Student Progress, Academic Success, and Inclusive Diversity
- Strengthening the Academic Infrastructure and the Use of Technology

Provost, (2008-June 2018)

Chief academic officer responsible for having shaped, lead, and implemented American University's distinctive mission. Balanced the ideal of a college-centered research university by combining the supports of a liberal arts college with the intensity of a research university. As provost, oversaw—including budget authority—the university's seven nationally ranked schools and colleges, as well as extended education, providing a unique opportunity for the institution's 12,000 undergraduate and graduate students. Provided overall leadership for both the content and quality of academic programs and services to include undergraduate and

graduate education with significant enhancement of faculty scholarship and research; University Library; Registrar; enrollment and financial aid; institutional research and assessment; faculty affairs; research and grants; career center; and study abroad. Led intensive change, resulting in institutional transformation and development of an interdisciplinary, entrepreneurial, and future-focused institutional culture. Established and expanded upon academic programs to enhance high impact learning (e.g., Community-based Research Scholars, Frederick Douglass Distinguished Scholars, living-learning communities, new AU core curriculum, three-year bachelor's degree programs) as well as high impact research. Improved metrics on student diversity, student quality, faculty research productivity, faculty hiring, and academic program quality and innovation. Honored as the namesake of the new undergraduate research award to represent "the inspiration and encouragement for high AU academic achievement." Obtained the distinction of being named provost emeritus by the Board of Trustees. Received a citation from the 2018 AU Board of Trustees. (To see the summary of the citation, visit: https://www.american.edu/provost/previous-provosts.cfm.)

Major accomplishments and outcomes include:

- Successful completion of AU's decennial 2014 Middles State Commission accreditation with recognition for university transformation as a result of leadership
- Oversaw the enhancement to the university's research infrastructure and increases in doctoral programs and funded research, contributing to AU's reclassification as R2: Doctoral Universities – Higher Research Activity by the Carnegie Classification of institutions
- Increased student diversity while simultaneously increasing undergraduate applications, GPA, SAT, academic standards, and institutional selectivity
- Contemporized academic policies and practices, benchmarking them to best practices, raising standards and expectations, and implementing a framework for academic excellence
- Developed strategic planning initiatives that give faculty a key role in determining AU's academic direction (e.g., AU 2030, Faculty/Staff Retreat, collaborative research initiatives, faculty development of research centers)
- Expanded the university faculty, hiring over half of the full-time faculty, and increasing the racial and ethnic diversity of the faculty body
- Collaborated with internal and external constituents to obtain support from the Andrew W. Mellon Foundation to build upon the existing advising system and academic support services
- Led the development of RiSE the university's Reinventing the Student Experience initiative
- Rewrote, in collaboration with the Faculty Senate, the entire Faculty Manual, which
 received an 82% campus-wide faculty vote of approval (cited by The Chronicle of
 Education, June 17, 2011, p. A15)
- Facilitated, in collaboration with the deans, a culture of transparency in the tenure and promotion process through the development of new written guidelines for tenure and promotion within each department/school
- Developed, in collaboration with the Faculty Senate, a new set of Undergraduate Academic Regulations and Graduate Academic Regulations

- Increased graduation rates from 75.5% to 81.2%
- Increased the percentage of multicultural first-year students in the University Honors Program from 13% to 33%
- Increased Pell-eligible freshmen enrollment from 8% of the class to 19% of the class (2017-2018)
- Reallocated financial aid resources to meet the full demonstrated need of low-income students
- Established the Frederick Douglass Distinguished Scholars Program for students serving as champions for solutions to the world's most pressing economic, environmental, and social problems
- Established intensive three-year baccalaureate programs with a fourth-year master's degree option in the College of Arts and Sciences, School of International Service, and the School of Public Affairs
- Revised the General Education Program to a new core curriculum
- Established a new problem-based Honors Program to achieve greater selectivity in student scholars
- Established AU's program presence in the online education market with selective online education providers
- Hired the deans of all AU academic units, a University Librarian, and six vice provosts
- Created in cooperation with the Faculty Senate, a career pathway with promotion milestones for contractual faculty
- Established the School of Professional and Extended Studies, American University's seventh degree-granting school
- Established I university-wide research center and 10 new school/college research centers and institutes
- Established over 25 new bachelor's degrees, more than 25 new master's degrees –
 including the university's first online master's degree, three LLM degrees, and 3 new
 Ph.D. degree programs
- Increased research and development expenditures from \$15,742 million to \$63,628 million
- Collaborated with campus leadership on the development of capital construction projects of new and renovated buildings for the School of International Service, School of Communication, the Washington College of Law campus, and the Myers Technology and Innovation Building, and the new Life Sciences Building (in progress)

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, BALTIMORE COUNTY

Vice President for Research and Dean of the Graduate School (2005-2008)

Dean of the Graduate School and Vice Provost for Research & Planning (2002-June 2005)

Dean of the Graduate School and Vice Provost for Research (1996-2002)

Managed a growing research and graduate enterprise in a mid-sized research university. The position carried broad, university-wide budget, policy development, planning, and management responsibilities. Managed five major campus-wide research centers. Responsible for federal relations, technology transfer, sponsored programs, compliance with state and federal scientific regulations, and collaborative research partnerships with federal laboratories, government agencies, universities, and the private sector. Overall responsibility for setting the vision and direction for graduate education and research (recruitment, new initiatives, program and center

reviews, academic policy, progressions, graduation) in a setting with a strong tradition of shared governance.

Major accomplishments and outcomes include:

- Strategic investment in research and graduate education that resulted in UMBC being ranked #3 in Geoscience publications/citations (*ScienceWatch*, 2007).
- UMBC was identified as evidencing largest change (345%) in Federal R&D expenditure from 1993-2002 among all research universities in America (source: The Center, 2004).
- Assisted in the development of 3 major Cooperative Agreements with NASA-Goddard; the Goddard Earth Science and Technology Center (GEST) agreement is for up to \$150M over 10 years.
- Liaison to Congressional offices for UMBC's priority legislative initiatives.
- Helped establish funding for six new university-wide interdisciplinary research centers generating over \$22M per year.
- UMBC ranked 6th for number of inventions disclosed per \$1M in spending on research, and 9th for patent applications filed per \$1M in spending on research. (Source: *American Association of University Technology Managers*, 2002).
- Increased graduate enrollment by 82% (1999-2007).
- Increased Ph.D. production by 93% (2000-2007).
- Underrepresented minority Ph.D. degrees awarded in science, technology, and engineering increased from 2% in 2000 to 12% in 2007.
- UMBC received the CGS/Peterson's Award for "promoting an inclusive graduate community" in 2002.
- Established a state-of-the-art revenue-generating online master's degree program in Information Systems, numerous master's and professional master's programs, certificate programs, and 5 new Ph.D. programs.
- Established a university-wide Research Council.
- Created a collaborative working group with Graduate Program Directors campus-wide and an effective combined Graduate Council with faculty from UMB and UMBC.
- Shaped academic policy in the areas of intellectual property, scientific misconduct, and conflict of interest.
- Assisted in crafting the academic strategic planning agenda for the campus.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Director, Gerontology Institute (1984-1996)

Founding director and administrator of the Gerontology Institute, a research and policy institute on aging and social policy.

Primary administrative accomplishments included:

- Secured the first and only state legislatively-funded university chair position at any Massachusetts public university.
- Attracted over \$1M in support for the Gerontology Institute including a line item in the state budget.

- Recruited and hired distinguished scholars and researchers to participate in direction and operation of the Gerontology Institute.
- Provided conceptual guidance placing the Gerontology Institute as one of the nation's foremost academic centers on the subject of productive aging.
- Established and co-edited a leading peer reviewed journal, The Journal of Aging & Social Policy.
- Involved older volunteers and community leaders in the mission and operation of the Gerontology Institute's service learning programs.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Graduate Program Director of the Ph.D. Program in Gerontology (1989-1995)

Established the nation's second Ph.D. program in Gerontology. Responsible for the program's conceptualization, design, administrative approvals, external reviews, curriculum development, marketing, staffing, faculty and graduate student recruitment, supervision of graduate students, and strategic planning.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Head of the Gerontology Center (1988-1995)

Founding chair of a multidisciplinary academic department in Gerontology that included ten members. Prepared justification for the creation of the department. Recruited, hired and reviewed promotion and tenure for all faculty in the department.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Director, Gerontology Program (1983-1988)

Responsible for a national model program for the teaching of students over 60 years old about aging and social policy. This program, named after a distinguished elder advocate, Frank J. Manning, offers a free-standing Gerontology Certificate that can be used as credit toward an undergraduate major.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Special Assistant to the Dean in the College of Public and Community Service (1979-1980)

Provided planning support to the Dean toward improving college and community relations. Assisted in developing a collegiate Advisory Board and in the planning for the Human Services graduate program.

Academic Appointments

AMERICAN UNIVERSITY

Professor of Public Administration and Policy, School of Public Affairs (2008-present)

STANFORD UNIVERSITY

Visiting Scholar, Graduate School of Education (January-March 2019) Visiting Professor, School of Medicine (January-June 2004)

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, BALTIMORE COUNTY

Distinguished Professor, Sociology and Public Policy (1996-2008)

Provided undergraduate and graduate instruction on issues of aging and social policy. Taught *Issues in Aging Policy*. Served as dissertation committee chair for Harley Heimovitz, 2001.

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Professor, College of Public and Community Service (1990-1996)

Provided undergraduate and doctoral level instruction in the area of aging and social policy. Involved students in conducting applied social policy research. Taught undergraduate program evaluation design, interviewing and reporting information research methods, community needs assessment, and graduate aging policy.

YOKOHAMA CITY UNIVERSITY YOKOHAMA, JAPAN

Distinguished Visiting Professor (1994)

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON

Associate Professor (1979-90)

Tenured 1987

Provided instruction in areas of urban planning and public affairs including needs assessment, evaluation, and public policy.

Other Professional Experience

JOURNAL OF AGING & SOCIAL POLICY

Editorial Board (1997-present)

Co-Editor (1989-1997)

Founded and co-edited an international refereed quarterly journal designed to examine policy issues faced by a rapidly changing and aging society.

CENTRE RESEARCH, INC

President and Co-Director (1976-1984)

Managed a research institute of 5-7 principals specializing in state and urban issues affecting low-income populations.

AMERICAN INSTITUTES FOR RESEARCH

Associate Research Scientist (1975)

Engaged in the study of the public school as a complex, socio-cultural system. Participated with an action-research model to reduce violence and vandalism in desegregated public schools.

UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

Associate Director, Introductory Psychology as a Social Science (1974)

Hired, organized, directed, and trained a staff of 25 graduate instructors to serve approximately 1,000 undergraduates.

HONORS AND AWARDS

Honors

Provost Emeritus (2018) for "leaving a proud legacy at American University" Board of Trustees, American University

Scott A. Bass Undergraduate Research Award for his "longstanding commitment to and support of academic excellence" Anonymous donor to American University

Faculty Senate Resolution in Honor of Provost Scott Bass (2018) American University

Dedicated Service Award – 10 Years and Honorary Staff Member (2018) American University

Donald P. Kent Lifetime Achievement Award (2011)

for "leadership in gerontology through teaching, service, and interpretation of gerontology to the larger society" The Gerontological Society of America

Vibrant Living: A UMASS Boston Gerontology Celebration (2010). Honoree

Administrative Leadership Award (2008) Association for Gerontology in Higher Education

Council of Graduate Schools/Peterson's Award for Promoting an Inclusive Graduate Community, \$10,000 (2002)

Women Empowering Women (1998)

"for your dedication and enthusiasm in furthering leadership opportunities for women at UMBC

Clark Tibbitts Award (1997)

Lifetime achievement award for "significant contributions to the advancement of the field of gerontology and geriatrics"

Association for Gerontology in Higher Education,

Master Teacher (1996)

Association for Gerontology in Higher Education

Delegate (1995) White House Conference on Aging

Dean's Distinguished Service Award (1990)

"In recognition of his contributions to the development of the Ph.D. Program in Gerontology" Office of Graduate Studies and Research, University of Massachusetts Boston

Visiting Fellow (1989) Lincoln Gerontology Centre for Research and Education La Trobe University, Abbotsford Victoria, Australia.

University of Massachusetts Award for Distinguished Professional Public Service (1988) For "exceptional contributions to society in the Land-Grant tradition" University of Massachusetts

Fellow (1987-present) Gerontological Society of America

Ollie Randall Symposium Award (1985) Gerontological Society of America

Academic Book of the Year Award (1981) for School Vandalism; Lexington Books Choice magazine

Funded Awards

Restructuring Student Support for Student Success: Developing a National Model (2015) Andrew W. Mellon Foundation, \$150,000

Community-Based Research Scholarship Program (2014) Jeffrey Sine, \$1,000,000

Wilson H. Elkins Professorship (2008, 2007, 2001-2003) University System of Maryland

Ph.D. Completion Project, *Principal Investigator* Council on Graduate Schools (\$75K, 2004; \$50K, 2007)

Renovation of University of Maryland, Baltimore County Biochemistry Facility, *Principal Investigator*, established in conjunction with the Chemistry Department National Institute of Health (NIH), \$2M award (2002)

Center for Advanced Studies in Photonics Research (CASPR), established in conjunction with UMBC President Freeman Hrabowski.

NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, \$2M (2002, 2005)

Goddard Earth Science and Technology Center

A cooperative agreement for establishment of a center of excellence for the Earth Sciences, between NASA Goddard and UMBC and its partners, Howard University, Hampton University, Caelum Research Corporation and Northrop Grumman Corporation NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, \$75M (1999-2004; renewed for \$75M in 2004).

Center for Environmental Research, Education and Training, established in conjunction with UMBC President Freeman Hrabowski, Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), \$2M (1999)

Frank J. Manning Chair in Gerontology, established with \$167,000 annual appropriation (1988-1997)

Expansion of the Gerontology Institute

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Budget line-item with \$395,000 annual appropriation increased to \$461,000 (1984-1997)

J. William Fulbright Research Scholarship Award, for study in Japan (1994-1995) Council for International Exchange of Scholars

ICF Incorporated (for The Commonwealth Fund).

\$10,000, career-related education for older persons; \$15,000, preparation of an edited book on productive aging; \$5,000, concept paper on productive aging (1991-1993)

Productive Aging Survey. Better Ways to Engage the Productive Capacities of Older Americans. The Commonwealth Fund, \$238,000 (1991-1992)

U.S. Administration on Aging, Minority Training in Gerontology. Increasing Minority Participation in Gerontology Through Collaborative Program Development, \$73,770 (1991-1992)

Minority Recruitment Planning Grant Rhode Island Department of Elder Affairs, \$7,500 (1991)

President's Office Planning Grant University of Massachusetts, \$30,000 (1983-1984)

Human service and education grants and contracts Raised approximately \$250,000 per year (1976-1982)

PUBLICATIONS

Books

Weiss, R., & Bass, S. A. (Eds.) (2002). Challenges of the third age: Meaning and purpose in later life. New York: Oxford University Press.

Bass, S. A., Morris, R., & Oka, M. (Eds.) (1996). Public policy and the old age revolution in Japan. New York: The Haworth Press.

Bass, S. A. (Ed.). (1995). Older and active: How Americans over 55 are contributing to society. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

Bass, S. A., & Morris, R. (Eds.). (1993). International perspectives on state and family support for the elderly. New York: The Haworth Press.

Bass, S. A., Caro, F., & Chen, Y-P. (Eds.). (1993). Achieving a productive aging society. Westport, CT: Auburn House.

Bass, S. A., Torres-Gil, F., & Kutza, E. (Eds.). (1990). Diversity in aging: Challenges facing planners & policymakers in the 1990s. Glenview, IL: Scott, Foresman and Company.

Morris, R., & Bass, S. A. (Eds.). (1988). Retirement reconsidered: Economic and social roles for older people. New York: Springer Publishing Company.

Casserly, M., Bass, S. A., & Garrett, J. (1980). School vandalism. Boston: Lexington Books.

Book Chapters

Bass, S. A. (2011). From retirement to "productive aging" and back to work again. In D.C. Carr and K.S. Komp (eds.), *Gerontology in the era of the third age: Implications and next steps*. New York: Springer Publishing Company.

Bass, S. A. (2009). Toward an integrative theory of social gerontology. In V. Bengtson, M. Silverstein, N. Putney and D. Gans (Eds.), *Handbook of theories of aging* (pp. 347 – 374). New York: Springer Publishing Company.

Bass, S. A. (2008). The role of enabling institutions in tapping the potential of an aging America. In W. K. Zinke (Ed.), *Utilizing older workers for competitive advantage: the new human resources frontier* (pp. 83 – 93). Boulder, Colorado: Center for Productive Longevity.

Bass, S. A. (2006). Productive aging. In R. Schulz, L. S. Noelker, K. Rockwood, R. Sprott (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of aging* (pp. 965-966). New York: Springer Publishing Company.

Bass, S. A. (2005). New models for post-retirement employment. In R. M. S. Visser and P. T. Beatty (Eds.), *Thriving on an aging workforce: Strategies for organizational and systemic change* (pp. 161-169). Krieger Publishing Co.

Weiss, R., & Bass, S. A. (2002). Introduction. In R. S. Weiss and S. Bass (Eds.), *Challenges of the third age: meaning and purpose in later life* (pp. 3-12). New York: Oxford University Press.

Weiss, R., & Bass, S. A. (2002). Epilogue: Concluding note on meaning and the possibility of productive aging. In R. S. Weiss and S. A. Bass (Eds.), *Challenges of the third age: meaning and purpose in later life* (pp.189-197). New York: Oxford University Press.

Bass, S. A. (2002). Productive aging. In D. J. Ekerdt, R. A. Applebaum, K. C. Holden, S. G. Post, K. Rockwood, R. Schulz, R. L. Sprott, and P. Uhlenberg (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of aging* (pp. 1130-1133). New York: Macmillan Reference USA.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (2001). Productive aging: A conceptual framework. In N. Morrow-Howell, J. Hinterlong, & M. Sherraden (Eds.), *Productive aging: Concepts and challenges* (pp. 37-78). Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins University Press.

Bass, S. A. (2000). Emergence of the third age: Toward a productive aging society. In F. G. Caro, R. Morris and J. Norton (Eds.), *Advancing aging policy as the* 21st *century begins* (pp. 7-17). New York: Haworth Press.

Bass, S. A., Caro, F. & Chen, Y. (2000). Achieving a productive aging society. In H. Moody, *Aging concepts and controversies* (pp. 277-281). Thousand Oaks, CA: Pine Forge Press.

Bass, S. A. (1996). Japan's aging society. In S. Bass, R. Morris, & M. Oka (Eds.), *Public policy and the old age revolution in Japan* (pp. 1-12). New York: Haworth Press.

Bass, S. A. (1996). An overview of work, retirement, and pensions in Japan. In S. Bass, R. Morris, & M. Oka (Eds.), *Public policy and the old age revolution in Japan* (pp. 57-78). New York: Haworth Press.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1996). Theoretical perspectives on productive aging. In W. Crown (Ed.), *Handbook of employment of the elderly* (pp. 262-275). Westport, CT: Greenwood Press.

Bass, S. A. (1995). Older and active. In S. Bass (Ed.), Older and active: How Americans over 55 are contributing to society (pp. 1-9). New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1995). Increasing volunteering among older people. In S. Bass (Ed.), Older and active: How Americans over 55 are contributing to society (pp. 71-96). New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1995). Dimensions of productive engagement. In S. Bass (Ed.), Older and active: How Americans over 55 are contributing to society (pp. 204-216). New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

Bass, S. A., Quinn, J., & Burkhauser, R. (1995). Toward pro-work policies and programs for older Americans. In S. Bass (Ed.), *Older and active: How Americans over 55 are contributing to society* (pp. 263-294). New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

Caro, F., Bass, S. A., & Chen, Y-P. (1993). Introduction: Achieving a productive aging society. In S. Bass, F. Caro, & Y-P. Chen (Eds.), *Achieving a productive aging society* (pp.3-25). Westport, CT: Auburn House.

Morris, R., & Bass, S. A. (1990). A new class in America: A revisionist view of retirement. In E. Markson & B. Hess (Eds.), *Growing old in America* (4th ed., pp.93-105). New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Books.

Bass, S. A., Kutza, E.A., & Torres-Gil, F. (1990). Introduction: Diversity in aging: The challenges facing the White House Conference on Aging. In S. Bass, E. A. Kutza, & F. Torres-Gil (Eds.), Diversity in aging: Challenges facing planners & policymakers in the 1990s (pp. xiii-xix). Glenview, IL: Scott, Foresman.

Bass, S. A., Kutza, E. A., & Torres-Gil, F. (1990). Conclusion: Directions for responsiveness. In S. Bass, E. A. Kutza, & F. Torres-Gil (Eds.), Diversity in aging: Challenges facing planners & policymakers in the 1990s (pp. 175-183). Glenview, IL: Scott, Foresman.

Bass, S. A. (1989). The political economy of higher education for older learners. In R. Sherron & D. Lumsden (Eds.), *Introduction to educational gerontology* (3rd ed., pp. 227-242). New York: Hemisphere Publishing.

Bass, S. A. (1988). The role of higher education in creating economic roles. In R. Morris & S. A. Bass (Eds.), *Retirement reconsidered: Economic and social roles for older people* (pp. 222-231). New York: Springer Publishing Company.

Morris, R., & Bass, S. A. (1988). The dynamics of change: Toward a new paradigm of work and age. In R. Morris & S. A. Bass (Eds.), *Retirement reconsidered: Economic and social roles for older people* (pp. 3-14). New York: Springer Publishing Company. (Reprinted in *Aging concepts and controversies*, pp. 309-314, by H. R. Moody, 1994, Thousand Oaks, CA: Pine Forge Press)

Garrett, J., Casserly, M., & Bass, S. A. (1978). Studying school crime: A prescription for research-based prevention. In E. Wenk & N. Harlow (Eds.), *School crime and disruption: Prevention models* (pp. 3-10). Washington, DC: National Institute of Education. (Also appears in *School crime and disruption*, pp. 11-20, by E. Wenk & N. Harlow (Eds.). Davis, CA: Responsible Action)

Garrett, J., Casserly, M., & Bass, S. A. (1978). Plus ça change: School crime in an institutional perspective. *In Theoretical perspectives on school crime*. Washington, DC: U. S. Department of Health, Education and Welfare.

Journal Articles and Other Articles

Bass, S. A., Caro, F., Miller, E. (June 2019) The origins and evolution of the Journal of Aging and Social Policy, *The Journal of aging and Social Policy*. 31 (4).

Bass, S. A. (December 2016). Placing the college student at the center. *University Business*.

Bass, S. A. & Clark, M. L. (October 16, 2015). The gravest threat to colleges comes from within. *The Chronicle of Higher Education*, p. A26. (Reprinted in The College Writer: 6th ed.)

Bass, S. A. (2014). Simple solutions to complex problems—MOOCs as a panacea. *Journal of General Education*, 63 (4).

Bass, S. A. (2013). The state of gerontology—opus one. *The Gerontologist*, 53 (3), doi: 10.1093/geront/gnt031

Bass, S. A. (2008). Intellectual perspectives on aging. [Review of the books Aging and time: Multidisciplinary perspectives and The futures of old age]. The Gerontologist, 48 (2), 265-270.

Bass, S. A. (2007). Civic engagement and the baby boomer generation: Research, policy and practice perspectives. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 19, (4), 123-133.

Bass, S. A. (2007). The emergence of the golden age of social gerontology? [Review of the books Aging globalization and inequality: The new critical gerontology, Context of ageing: Class, cohort and community, and Social theory and aging]. The Gerontologist, 47 (3), 408-412.

Bass, S. A. (2007). The power of persistence in shaping gerontological thought and practice. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 19, (3), 133-142.

Bass, S. A. (2006). Gerontological theory: The search for the holy grail. [Review of the book *The need for theory*]. *The Gerontologist*, 46 (1), 139-144.

Bass, S. A. & Jacob E. (2005, September 12). The isolated other America. [OpEd page]. *The Baltimore Sun*.

Bass, S. A. (2005). Medicare reform – a wolf in sheep's clothing. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 17, (3), 1-17.

Weiss, R. S., Bass, S. A., Heimovitz, H. K., & Oka, M. (2005). Japan's silver human resource centers and participant well-being. *Journal of Cross-Cultural Gerontology*, 20, (1), 47-66.

Bass, S. A., Tull, R., Rutledge, J. C., Jackson, M. E., & Summers, M. F. (2003). Paving the pathway to the professions: Institutional practices to facilitate the success of a diverse doctoral student population. *Journal for Higher Education Strategists*, 1, (3), 261-299.

Bass, S. A. (2003, February 1). U. S. technological supremacy is in danger. [OpEd page]. *Boston Globe*.

Bass, S. A. (2002). The resurgence of gerontological scholarship. [Review of the books *Aging and the welfare-state crisis* and *Cultures of ageing: Self, citizen and the body*]. *The Gerontologist*, 42 (1), 127-131.

Bass, S. A. (2000, October 27). Bush, Gore ignore aging issues. [OpEd page]. The Baltimore Sun.

Bass, S. A. & Quinn, J. (2000, May 11) Help wanted - 65 and up. [OpEd page]. The Washington Post.

Bass, S. A., & Ferraro, K. (2000). Gerontology education in transition: Considering disciplinary and paradigmatic evolution. *The Gerontologist*, 40, (1), 97-106.

Bass, S. A. (2000). Emergence of the third age: Toward a productive aging society. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 11, (2/3), 7-17.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1997). Receptivity to volunteering in the immediate post-retirement period. *Journal of Applied Gerontology*, 16, (4), 427-441.

Bass, S. A. (1997). The challenge of aging and social policy. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 9, (2), 1-6.

Bass, S. A., & Silverstein, N. (1996). Action-research: A practical model to link teaching, research, and community service. *Metropolitan Universities*, 7, (3), 85-94.

Bass, S. A. (1996). Japan's aging society. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 8, (2/3), 1-12.

Bass, S. A. (1996). An overview of work, retirement, and pensions in Japan. *Journal of Aging* & Social Policy, 8, (2/3), 57-78.

Bass, S. A. (1996). In community-based, long-term care for elders, quandaries persist, but consumer choice calls for experimentation, education. *Perspective on Aging*, XXV (4), 4-7.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1996). The economic value of grandparental assistance. *Generations*, XX (1), 29-33.

Bass, S. A. (1996). Public policy and the 104th Congress. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 8, (1), 1-6. Oka, M., Bass, S. A., Weiss, R., Caro, F., & Lyons, M. (1996). Work and ikigai in advanced life. *Welfare Community*, (1), 237-255.

Bass, S. A., & Peterson, D. (Winter 1995-1996). Gerontology instructional quality. *Generations*, XIX (4), 82-83.

Bass, S. A., & Oka, M. (1995). An older worker employment model: Japan's Silver Human Resource Centers. *The Gerontologist*, 35, (5), 679-682.

Breytspraak, L., Peterson, D., Denton, D., Sherman, S., & Bass, S. A. (1995). To accredit or not to accredit: That is the question. *AGHExchange*, 18, (4), 1-2.

Bass, S. A., & Oka, M. (1995). Maximizing human capacity for economic productivity: An examination of older people in Japan's Silver Human Resource Centers. *Industry and Trade (Japan)*. 169, 1-10.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1995). Older people as researchers: Benefits to research and the community. *Educational Gerontology*, 21, 469-480.

Bass, S. A., & Morris, R. (1994). From the editors. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 6, (3), 3-4.

Bass, S. A. (1994). Ikigai: Japan's model for aging as an economic agenda. Aging Today, XV (1), 5-6.

Ansello, E., & Bass, S. A. (1994). Survival and beyond: Strategies for successful gerontology programs. *AGHExchange*, 17, (3), 1-2.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1992). The new politics of productive aging. In Depth, 2, (3), 59-79.

Bass, S. A. (1992). International perspectives in aging policy: A review essay of three recent volumes. *Journal of Cross-Cultural Gerontology*, 7, (4), 439-446.

Bass, S. A. (1992). Planning for aging services with dwindling resources — Fact or illusion? *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 4, (1/2), 1-4.

Bass, S. A. (1992, August 16). Poverty's sting can be sharpest for the elderly. *The Boston Sunday Globe*.

Bass, S. A. (1992). Gerontology program succeeds in Boston. Adult Learning, 3, (6), 22-23.

Bass, S. A., Torres-Gil, F., & Kutza, E. A. (1990). On the relationship between the diversity of the aging population and public policy. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 2, (3/4), 101-115.

Bass, S. A., & Morris, R. (1990). From the editors. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 2, (2), 1-2.

Bass, S. A. (1990). The future of the welfare state in ageing: Questions from an American observer. *Australian Journal on Ageing*, 9, (1/2), 10-14.

Bass, S. A., & Morris, R. (1989). From the editors. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 1, (3/4), 1-3.

Bass, S. A., & Morris, R. (1989). From the editors. *Journal of Aging & Social Policy*, 1, (2/3), 1-3.

Morris, R., & Bass, S. A. (Spring 1988). A new class in America: A revisionist view of retirement. *Social Policy*, 18, (4), 38-43. (Reprinted in *Growing Old in America*, by E. Markson & B. Hess (Eds.), 1990. New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Books)

Bass, S. A. (1988). [Review of Realistic expectations for long life]. Journal of Applied Gerontology, 7, (4), 558-560.

Bass, S. A. (Winter 1987-1988). Income inequality among the elderly: The potential impact on a learning society. *Generations*, 12, (2), 37-41.

Bass, S. A. (1987). Tomorrow's able elderly: Implications for policy and practice. *The Gerontologist*, 27, (4), 403-424.

Bass, S. A. (1987). University and community partnerships: Developing linkages for quality gerontological training and institutional expansion. *Educational Gerontology*, 13, (4), 307-324.

Bass, S. A. (1986). Seniors trained to serve seniors. Aging, No. 354, 13-15.

Bass, S. A. (February 1986). Matching educational opportunities with the able elderly. *Lifelong learning: An omnibus of practice and research*, 9, (5), 4-7.

Morris, R., & Bass, S. A. (1986). The elderly as surplus people: Is there a role for higher education? *The Gerontologist*, 26, (1), 12-18.

Bass, S. A., & Mandell, F. (Summer 1982). Building networks in urban settings: An approach to delinquency prevention. *New England Journal of Human Services*, 2, (3), 20-25.

Monographs and Research Reports

Bass, S. A., Rutledge, J., Douglass, E., & Carter, W. (2007). The University as mentor: Lessons learned from UMBC inclusiveness initiatives. Baltimore, MD: UMBC. (Distributed by the Council of Graduate Schools http://www.cgsnet.org/Default.aspx?tabid=288>.

Ansello E. F., & Bass, S. A. (1999). Assessing the five ingredients for success in gerontology programs. (p. 5). In S. A. Talley, *What works? A guide to successful gerontology programs*. Washington, DC: Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Ochsner, N., Johnson, A., & Bass, S. A. (1999). Report of the UMBC Enrollment Management Task Force. Baltimore, MD: UMBC.

Bass, S. A., & Oka, M. (1998). Productive aging and the Silver Human Resource Centers. In M. Oka (Ed.), *Japan's post-retirement work program and the well-being of participants*. (The Final Report of the Questionnaire Survey to the New Members of the Silver Human Resource Centers) (pp. 43-50). Yokohama, Japan: Yokohama City University, Economic Research Institute.

Bass, S. A. (1995). Japan's older worker employment system in a changing global economy. *Older workers: Their place in a changing global economy* (pp. 17-22). New York: Japan Society, AARP, & the United Nations World Summit for Social Development.

Bass, S. A. (1995). Productive aging and the role of older people in Japan: New approaches for the United States. New York: Japan Society, Inc. & International Leadership Center on Longevity and Society.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1992). Patterns of productive activity among older Americans. Boston, MA: Gerontology Institute, University of Massachusetts Boston.

Bass, S. A., & Barth, M. (1992). The next educational opportunity: Career training for older adults. New York: The Commonwealth Fund.

Massagli, M., Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1992). Using a factorial design to estimate statistics to increase productive activity among older people. Boston, MA: Gerontology Institute, University of Massachusetts Boston.

Caraballo Ireland, E., & Bass, S. A. (1991). *The voices of the elderly: A Massachusetts survey of health and service concerns*. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts Boston.

Bass, S. A., & Peterson, D. (1990). Emerging doctoral degree programs in gerontology. In J. R. Connelly, T. Rich, & E. B. Douglass (Eds.), *Standards and guidelines for gerontology programs*. (pp. 64-71). Washington, DC: Standards Committee of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Schofield, R., & Bass, S. A. (1986). *Access to nursing homes--The experience of families*. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Schofield, R., & Bass, S. A. (1986). *Nursing home residents: Issues in adjusting to a new environment.* Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Houlihan, P., & Bass, S. A. (1986). *Older residents of Riverside-Cambridgeport: A population at risk.* Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Doolin, J., with Bass, S. A., Houlihan, P., Saunders, M. (1986). *Older neighbors--Aging in Eastern Massachusetts*. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Bass, S. A., Rowland, R., & Dwyer, B. (1986). Leaders of the aging movement: Biographical sketches of Frank J. Manning, Anna V. Brown, Rev. Edward L. Peet. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Cluster, R., Chasnoff, D., Bass, S. A., & Houlihan, P. (1985). A technical analysis of the impact of FY 1986 budget proposals on the elderly in Massachusetts. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Balsam, A., Osteraas, S., Bass, S. A., & O'Neill, J. (1985). *An evaluation of the Congregate Nutrition Program for the elderly*. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Bass, S. A., Lukas, C., & Astrein, B. (1984). *A closer look at the safety net: The human and social impact of selected welfare changes in Massachusetts*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Department of Social Services.

Bass, S. A., Astrein, B., & Jacob, E. (1983). *Up the down escalator: State and federal budgets -- The impact on families*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Human Services Coalition.

Astrein, B., Bass, S. A., & Jacob, E. (1983). *Below the bottom line: A study of poverty in Massachusetts*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts CAP Directors' Association.

Lukas, C., & Bass, S. A. (1982). A comprehensive delivery system for child day care. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Department of Social Services.

Bass, S. A., & Rowland, R. (1982). Client satisfaction of elderly homemaker services. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts Boston.

Bass, S. A., & Rowland, R. (1982). A nursing home...not for my folks! Families caring for their elderly at home. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Bass, S. A., & Rowland, R. (1982). *Job satisfaction of home care case managers*. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Astrein, B., & Bass, S. A. (1982). A plan to develop a comprehensive low-income energy system in Massachusetts. Boston, MA: Massachusetts CAP Directors' Association.

Bass, S. (1981). A time for cooperation: Dismantling of human services by the Reagan administration and a proposed response. *Monograph No. 2*, Providence, RI: Community College of the Rhode Island Foundation.

Casserly, M., Bass, S. A., & Garrett, J. (1979). School vandalism: Strategies for prevention, An LEAA program model. Washington, DC: Council of the Great City Schools.

Bass, S. A. (1981). Financing home energy improvements—A step toward a solution. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Bass, S. A., & Frank, M. (1981). Next steps: Minimizing the impact of federal social service cuts-A guide for citizens and social service workers. Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Lukas, C., & Bass, S. A. (1981). Evaluation of the DDS day care sliding fee scale demonstration. Boston, MA: Centre Research, Inc.

Bass, S. A., & Rowland, R. (1980). The elderly have spoken: Is anybody listening? Boston, MA: University of Massachusetts.

Garrett, J., Bass, S. A., Hinds, I., & Mandell, F. (1980). *Kids in the Commonwealth: A children's perspective of life in Massachusetts*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts Office for Children.

Hinds, I., Garrett, S., & Bass, S. A. (1978). *A casebook on women's education equity programs*. Boston, MA: Massachusetts State Department of Education.

Bass, S. A. (1976). Aggressive and pro-social television programs and their effects on cooperation and competition in young children. Dissertation. Ann Arbor, MI: University of Michigan Microfilms.

PRESENTATIONS

Refereed Academic Papers and Sessions

Equity, Access, and Transparency: Key Components to Delivering Opportunity (2018). Panel Discussion. College Board Higher Ed Colloquium. La Jolla, CA.

Reinventing the Student Experience Through Innovative Programs and Culture Change (2017). Session Speaker. The Society for College and University Planning Annual Conference. Vancouver, Canada.

Reinventing the Student Experience: A Comprehensive Redesign of Student Services (2016). SCUP-51. Society for College and University Planning. Vancouver, Canada.

Bass, S. A. (2007, 2008, 2009, 2010). Gerontological Society of America Social Gerontological Theory Award Symposium.

Bass, S. A. (2006). Leadership in gerontological education. 59th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (2006). Exploring the connection between theory and research. 59^{th} Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (2005). The interdisciplinary mandate: Gerontology at a disciplinary crossroad. The state of gerontology from the dean's perspective. 58th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Higgs, P., & Bass, S. A. (2005) Desire, disgust and the aging body. 58^{th} Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (2005). *Civic engagement of an older America, pro-work policies for older Americans*. 58th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Heimovitz, H., Weiss, R., Bass, S. A., & Oka, M. (2004). Post-retirement employment and well-being of participants in a Japanese employment program. 57th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A., Moody, H. R., Gilliard, C., & Higgs, P. (2003) *Controversies in Social Gerontology: Rethinking the Conceptual Foundation*. 56th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (2001). Ph.D. Program in gerontology and aging studies: Overview and assessment. $54^{\rm th}$ Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. and Ferraro, K. (2000). *Preparing for the golden age of gerontology*. Opening plenary session at the 26th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A., (1999). Finding meaning in the third age. 52nd Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1999). Developing the conceptual underpinnings of productive aging. 52^{nd} Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1997). *Creativity and Aging: Exploring Human Potential. Policy tools for incentives and opportunities in late life employment*. 50th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1997). *Academic Career Advancement for Minorities*, The challenge to academic administrators. 50th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1997). *The power of the gerontological imagination*. Tibbitts Award Lecture at the 23rd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1997). *Advocacy for your program: What works and what doesn't*. 23rd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1997). *Multi perspectives on action research: From design to dissemination*. 23rd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1997). Stimulating productive community service contributions among older people. 23rd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Weiss, R., Bass, S. A., Oka, M., and Lyons, M. (1996). *Is there a relationship between work and meaning in later life?* Poster Session at the 49th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1996). *Japan, Europe, and the developing world: Are other countries leading the way in older worker policy, programs, and practice?* The National Council on Aging Annual Meeting.

Bass, S. A. (1996). Using the classroom as a vehicle for integrating research, teaching, and service: Models of action-research. 22nd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1996). Cohort differences in Gerontology education: Defining the field for the future. 22nd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1996). *Enhancing program development through advocacy: The why and how.* 22nd Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1995). *Employment and retirement: Policy activities and models*. 48th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1995). Teaching theories in aging and policy: What do students need to know about theory? 48th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1995). Dissertations and jobs for Ph.D.'s in Gerontology: Experience and prospects.

48th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1995). *Have we outlived the usefulness of the institution of retirement?* 48th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1995). *Point-counterpoint: Accreditation of Gerontology programs*. 21st Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1995). *Getting the money: Influencing local or state funding for gerontological education*. 21st Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1994). *Japan's Silver Human Resource Centers*. 47th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1994). *Ph.D. curriculum and qualifying exams -- Assessment of Ph.D.*'s in *Gerontology*. 47th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1994). *Earning a Ph.D. in Gerontology: A programmatic self-assessment*. 20th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1994). Outcomes of older worker retraining: Programs in higher education. 20th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1993). *Volunteering in the immediate post-retirement period*. 46th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A., Caro, F. (1993). *Promoting productive aging beyond work*. 46th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A., Caro, F. (1993). *Productive contributions of older people*. 46th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1993). *Programmatic issues concerning the inter-dependency between gerontology and public policy*. SRPP Student-sponsored symposium at the 46th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1993). *New conceptions of productive aging: A framework for public policy*. Public Policy forum at the 46th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1993). *Gerontology in hard (? challenging?) times*, AGHE Pre-Conference Workshop at the 19th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1993). Influencing federal gerontological education and research policy. 19th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1993). What's par: Setting standards for older adult non-credit, continuing education programs. 19th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1993). Will productive aging bring new life to older adult education? 19th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1992). *The emergence of gerontology as a profession*. 45th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1992). *Productive aging: Commonwealth Fund Findings*. 45th Annual Meeting of the Gerontology Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1992). *Implications for professional development, work, and retirement in an aging society.* American Society for Public Administration Northeast Regional Conference.

Bass, S. A. (1992). *The Ph.D. in Gerontology: Standards and practices*. 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1992). Frameworks for describing and classifying elder adult education programs. 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1992). *Higher education in hard (challenging) times*. AGHE Pre-Conference Workshop. 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1992). Higher education and employment training for mature adults. 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1992). Developing gerontology program outcomes: How can we improve the fit among programmatic mission, curriculum, and student expectations? 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1992). Role of higher education in middle- and late-career relearning. American Association for the Advancement of Science meeting, Chicago, Illinois.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1991). *Productive Aging: Discourses III*. 44th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A., & Caro, F. (1991). *Productive aging debate: Concepts, measures, values.* 44th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1991). Steps forward. Productive aging: Latest research findings. 44th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1991). The role of community colleges in training older adults. Conference on the Older Learner.

Bass, S. A. (1990). Serving elders in greatest economic and social need: The challenge of the Older Americans Act. 43rd Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1990). *Productive aging as a political issue*. XII World Congress of Sociology, Madrid, Spain.

Bass, S. A. (1990). *Education through life*. The Future of Adult Life, 2nd International Conference, The Netherlands.

Caro, F., & Bass, S. A. (1990). *Involving elderly in gerontological policy research.* Bridging the Gap Between Research and Practice, 1990 American Society on Aging Annual Meeting, San Francisco, California.

Bass, S. A. (1989). *The changing profile of the older population and its implications for the* 1991 *White House Conference on Aging and beyond.* 42nd Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Caraballo, E., & Bass, S. A. (1988). *Home health care: An impact assessment*. Poster session at the 41st Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1988). *Perspectives on volunteerism in aging*. 41st Annual Meeting at the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1987). *Institutional structures to involve retired professors in public service*. 40th Annual Meeting at the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1987). *Empowering older adult learners*. 3rd Annual Howard McClusky Symposium at the American Association of Adult and Continuing Education.

Bass, S. A. (1987). The role of higher education in preparing older adults for alternative employment. Annual Conference and Exhibition at the National Council on the Aging.

Bass, S. A. (1987). *The Ph.D. in gerontology: It's a matter of time.* 13th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1987). State support for gerontologic/geriatric education: Status and needs. 13th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1986). *A new paradigm for examining social and economic roles for the elderly*. Clark Tibbitts Symposium at the 39th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1986). *Doctoral study in gerontology*. 39th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1985). *Tomorrow's able elderly: Implications for policy and practice.* 39th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1985). Education for older people. XIII International Congress of Gerontology.

Bass, S. A. (1985). What roles for the active elderly in aging societies? XIII International Congress of Gerontology.

Bass, S. A. (1985). Issues of the '80s practitioner's perspectives--Education for older people. Pre-Congress Conference at the International Association of Gerontology.

Bass, S. A. (1985). *Revising national retirement policy: What economic roles for older adults?* Annual Meeting of the American Association for the Advancement of Science.

Bass, S. A. (1985). Older people in planning for an aging society: Advocacy, education, research, and practice. 5th Annual Conference of the Northeastern Gerontological Society.

Bass, S. A. (1985). *Models of effective coalitions with higher education*. 11th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1984). *A framework for examining significant roles for self-determination*. 37th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1984). The future of our service delivery system for the elderly and their families. Keynote address at the Family Service of America Regional Meeting.

Bass, S. A. (1984). Beyond multi-disciplinary: An exploration in outcome learning in gerontological social policy. 10th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1984). *Emeritus professors: Engagement and involvement*. 10th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1984). *Enhancing the capabilities of active older people for leadership positions in gerontology*. 10th Annual Meeting of the Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Bass, S. A. (1983). Significant roles for older people in gerontology. 36th Annual Meeting of the Gerontological Society of America.

Bass, S. A. (1983). *The question of health care--Who will pay and who will get it?* Moderator, Fall Conference at the University of Massachusetts/Boston, CPCS.

Bass, S. A. (1983). Family care. Presented at Governor Dukakis's 1st Annual Conference on Aging.

Bass, S. A. (1983). Issues in long-term care in the next five to fifteen years. Presented at the Massachusetts Federation of Nursing Homes Conference.

Bass, S. A. (1983). *Socrates never retired: Models for lifelong learning*. Presented at the 3rd Annual Meeting of the Northeastern Gerontological Society.

External Presentations, Lectures, Discussions

Disrupting Organizational Silos in An Increasingly Converged World: Can Higher Education Meet the Challenge? (2019). RTM Higher Education Congress. Washington, D.C.

Three Takes on Transforming Spaces & Services for Student Success in the Library and Across Campus. (2019). ALA Annual Conference & Exhibition. Washington, D.C.

Academic Sequences, Pathways, & the Student Journey. (2019). Workshop on Student Pathways, Stanford University. Palo Alto, California.

Reinventing the Student Experience: Providing Service to Meet the Changing Needs of Students (2016). Middle States Commission on Higher Education Annual Conference. Session Speaker. Philadelphia, PA.

Defining the Problem and Solutions (2016). Panel Discussion. Bridging the Gap for Provosts. American University. Washington, D.C.

Fireside Chat (2016). Academy for Innovative Higher Ed Leadership. Washington, D.C.

University Impact Panel (2016). Panel Discussion. 2U, Orlando, FL.

Student Success Panel (2016). Higher Education Leadership Summit. Orlando, FL.

Remember Borders Books, Circuit City Stores, and the Walkman? Responding to the Scope of Change Facing Graduate Education (2013). Plenary. Midwestern Association of Graduate Schools 69th Annual Meeting. Minneapolis, MN.

The State of Gerontology- Opus One (2012). Donald P. Kent Award Lecture. 65th Annual Scientific Meeting, the Gerontological Society of America. San Diego, CA.

A Degree of Value? The Changing Context of the Undergraduate Degree in the United States (2012). Going Global 2012. British Council Higher Education Conference. London, England.

The View from the Provost's Office (2012). Closing Plenary. 38th Association for Gerontology in Higher Education Annual Meeting and Educational Leadership Conference. Arlington, VA.

The Study of Peace at American University (2010). Asia Pacific University Presidents' Peace Forum. Kyoto, Japan.

How Shared Governance was Transformed at American University (2010). Panel Presenter. American Association of University Professors.

Built to Last: The Roots of the UMASS Boston Gerontology Program & a Promise for a Dynamic Future (2010). Keynote Address. Vibrant Living: UMass Boston Gerontology Celebration. Boston, MA.

Productive Aging: Historical Context, Opportunities, and Challenges (2010). Panelist/ Presenter. Urban Institute. Washington, D.C.

Action Research: From Classroom to the Community (2010). Presenter. Anne Ferren Teaching Conference, American University. Washington, D.C.

How Do We Increase the Cultural Richness of our Programs and Graduates? (2008). Plenary Address. Conference of Southern Graduate Schools 37th Annual Meeting. Austin, Texas

Enhancing Diversity in Graduate Education (2007). Presenter. Council of Graduate Schools 47th Annual Meeting. Seattle, Washington.

American Competitiveness: Applying Targeted Strategies to Increase U.S. Participation in STEM Disciplines (2007). Presenter. Association of Graduate Schools Deans Meeting, Washington, D.C.

Strategic Academic Planning I: Venturing Beyond the Individual Investigator Imperative (2007). Presenter. Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education, Summer Forum. Lake Tahoe, California.

Space: The Final Frontier: Identifying New and Managing Old Research Space (2007). Roundtable Leader. Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education, Summer Forum. Lake Tahoe, California.

The New Human Resources Frontier: Utilizing Older Workers For Competitive Advantage National Conference (2007). Discussion Group Leader. Washington, D.C.

Building an Inclusive Graduate Community (2007). Keynote Speaker. University of Nebraska Campus Retreat, Lincoln, Nebraska.

Broadening Participation in Graduate Education (2006). Presenter. Council of Graduate Schools 46th Annual Meeting, Washington D.C.

Ph.D. Completion Project, Building a University Culture That Values the Graduate Student (2006). Presentation/Speaker . Council of Graduate Schools, Summer Workshop for Graduate Deans. Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Session IV: Budget and Staff Management Strategies (2006). Speaker. Council of Graduate Schools, New Deans Institute. Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Conflict of Interest and Research Misconduct: Lessons Learned and Best Practices (2006). Roundtable Leader. Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education, Summer Forum. South Portland, Maine.

How to do "interdisciplinary?" (2006). Session Presider. Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education, Summer Forum. South Portland, Maine.,

Graduate Students in 2020: New Perspectives (2006). Panelist. National Science Foundation Workshop for Graduate Deans. Arlington, Virginia.

A Growing Gap? Structural Lag and Graduate Doctoral Education (2006). Presenter. National Science Foundation Workshop. Arlington, Virginia.

Productive Aging: Boon or Burden? (2006). Panelist. Urban Institute. Washington D.C.

Managing a High Performing Graduate School Staff in a Challenging Environment (2005). Presenter. Council of Graduate Schools Summer Workshop. Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Budget and Staff Management Strategies (2005) Presenter. Council of Graduate Schools Summer Workshop. Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Centers and Institutes – From Sunrise to Sunset (2005). Presenter Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education Summer Forum. Vancouver, BC, Canada.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2005). Presenter. The National Science Foundation.

Engaging Older Adults in Society (2005). Moderator. The White House Conference on Aging. Winter Park, FL.

A Primer on Indirect Costs: Their Cause and Effects (2004). Presenter. 2004-2005 Open Faculty Meeting. University of Maryland Eastern Shore.

Program Quality Assessment (2004). Presenter. CGS New Deans Institute and Summer Workshop for Graduate Deans. San Juan, Puerto Rico.

Overcoming Diversity Fatigue: Sustaining Inclusiveness Efforts (2004). Presider. Council of Graduate Schools 44th Annual Meeting. Washington, D.C.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. Stanford University School of Medicine.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. University of California, Davis.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. University of California, Santa Cruz.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. University of California, Berkeley.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields. (2004) Presenter. University of California, Santa Barbara.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. University of California, San Francisco.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2004). Presenter. University of Washington.

Increasing Doctoral Participation of Underrepresented Minorities in the Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) Fields (2003). Council of Graduate Schools 43rd Annual Meeting.

Preparing for an Older Work Force (2003). Division of Behavioral and Social Sciences and Education, Steering Committee Workshop on Technology for Adaptive Aging, National Research Council. Washington, D.C. Presentation.

Change in Graduate Education and Research at UMBC (2002). Presenter. University of Maryland, Baltimore County Retreat.

UMBC Collaborations, Partnerships and Cooperative Agreements (2002). University Partnerships Panel Participant. 40th Goddard Memorial Symposium.

America's Changing Demographics and the Graying Workforce (2000). Panel Participant. Meeting the Employment Needs of the 21st Century: National Conference on the Economic and Social Impact of Demographic Change.

Beyond the Checkbook: Productive Aging Today and Tomorrow (2000). Presenter. Delaware Investments. Delaware Decision Decade Symposium.

Innovative Older Worker Programs in Japan. Part of United Nations International Year of the Older Person programs (1999). Presenter. U. S. Department of Labor's Older Worker in the Next Millennium Conference.

Public Policy to Promote Employment of Older Workers (1999). Presenter. French American Foundation Symposium on Funding Pensions of the 21st Century Pension Plans and Deferring Retirement. Paris, France. Presenter.

The Silver Market: New Opportunities in a Graying Japan and United States (1999). Lecturer. The Japan Society of New York.

Excursions in Time and the Old Age Revolution (1999). Presenter. University of Maryland, Baltimore County Humanities Forum.

Productive Aging and Ikigai: Exploring Concepts and Meanings (1999). Yokohama 21st Century Forum. Yokohama, Japan.

Productive Aging (1998). Presenter. Scientific meeting: Perspectives on Productive Aging: Toward a Knowledge-Building Agenda. Washington University in St. Louis.

Aging Issues (1997). Presenter. Long Range Issues Facing the Social Security Supplemental Security Income Program.

Panel on Developing Community Based Options: The Role of Action Research (1997). Presenter. Lessons Learned from Scandinavia: Developing Ways to Care for the Elderly and Disabled.

Challenges Presented by the Aging Workforce and Options for Addressing Them (1997). Lecturer. Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) Industry Committee's Social Security Task Force.

Creating Pro-Work Policies and Programs for a Graying America (1997). Presenter. U. S. Senate Special Committee on Aging Workshop on Older Americans: Preparing for the Baby Boomers Retirement: The Role of Employment.

The Silver Human Resource Center Program (1997). Lecturer. American Association of Retired Persons.

The Silvering of Japan (1997). Lecturer. Baltimore County Department of Aging.

Strategies for Developing and Sustaining Gerontology Programs (1996). Lecturer. Maryland Consortium for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Conceptual Perspectives on Productive Aging (1996). Lecturer. University of Maryland Baltimore County, Department of Sociology.

The Silver Human Resource Center as a Model Program (1995). Lecturer. Center for the Study of Aging and the Aging Studies Program at the University of Vermont, and Japan American Society of Vermont.

Retirement, Work & Aging in Japan (1995). Lecturer. Japan Society of Boston and the Massachusetts Gerontology Association.

Work and Retirement in Japan (1995). Keynote speaker. Massachusetts Citizen's Advisory Board.

Employment Issues for the White House Conference on Aging (1995). Lecturer. Executive Office of Elder Affairs.

Productive Aging and the Role of Older People in Japan (1995). Lecturer. Japan America Society of Florida and the Florida/Japan Institute.

Aging and Work in Japan (1995). University of South Florida.

Aging in Japan (1995). Lecturer. University of Massachusetts Boston.

Pensions not Posies (1995). Pre-White House Conference on Aging.

Japan's Older Worker Employment System in a Changing Global Economy (1995). AARP/ Japan Society/ United Nations World Summit for Social Development.

Productive Activities of Older Persons in the United States (1994). Lecturer. Tokyo Metropolitan Institute of Gerontology.

Silver Human Resource Center in Japan (1994). Session speaker. New England Older Workers Conference.

Productive Aging and Ikigai (life purpose) (1994). Session speaker. Japan Society, New York City.

Selections from Japan (1994). Lecturer. University of Massachusetts Boston.

Productive Aging: Findings from the Commonwealth Fund (1994). Research Seminar Series. American Association for Retired Persons. Washington, DC.

A Comparison of the Aging Societies in Japan and the U.S. (1994). Lecturer. Yokohama City University, Japan. Lecture.

Productive Aging in Contemporary Society (1993). Keynote speaker. Saint Joseph College.

Achieving a Productive Aging Society (1993). Keynote speaker. Education Advocates' 10th Annual Luncheon. Worcester State College. Worcester, Massachusetts.

A Comparison of Japanese and U. S. Approaches to an Aging Society (1993). Speaker. Massachusetts Hokkaido Forum.

Higher Education Opportunities for Older Workers. A roundtable discussion (1992). Commonwealth Fund. New York.

A Workshop on Curriculum In Aging (1992). Roxbury Community College.

A workshop on the older learner (1992). Roxbury Community College.

Older People as a Resource (1992). Guest speaker. Southwest Boston Senior Services Annual Meeting.

The Role of Community Colleges in Training Older Adults (1991). Conference on the Older Learner. Atlanta, Georgia.

The State of the Commonwealth Forum (1991). Chair. Massachusetts Governor's Conference on Elder Affairs.

Politics and Policies of Aging in the '90s (1991). Annual meeting speech. Massachusetts Council for Homemaker-Home Health Aide Services.

The Increase in Able Productive Elderly (1991). Northeastern Gerontology Society Social Policy Forum.

Standards and Expectations for the Ph.D. in Gerontology (1991). Discussion session. Association for Gerontology in Higher Education. Discussion session.

The AGHE Standards and Guidelines of Gerontology Programs (1991). Pre-Conference Workshop Chair. Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Expert witness on education for elders (1990). Lasell Junior College. Boston, Massachusetts.

The Peer Program Review (1990). Workshop moderator. Association for Gerontology in Higher Education.

Mental Health and the Elderly: Implications for Policy, Planning, & Advocacy (1990). Moderator and respondent. Massachusetts Public Health Association.

Education Through Life (1990). Chair. The Future of Adult Life, 2nd International Conference. The Netherlands.

Australia: Service Delivery Systems to the Aged (1989). Keynote address. Gerontology Alumni Association (University of Massachusetts Boston) Annual Luncheon.

Financing Health Care for the Elderly and Universal Health Care (1989). Moderator. John F. Kennedy Library Political Discussions series on Social Issues of the Coming Decade.

Ageing Policy (1989). Seminar. South Australian Office of the Commissioner for the Ageing.

Diversity in Policies for the Elderly (1989). Lecture. Department of Social and Preventive Medicine, Monash University. Australia.

Education for Older People (1989). Seminar. Hawthorn Community Education Project. University of the Third Age. Australia.

New Approaches in the United States toward Economic Roles for the Retired (1989). Lecture. School of Economics and Financial Studies. Macquarie University. Australia.

New Roles for Older People: The Political Economy of the Education of Elders in the United States (1989). Lecture. Lincoln School of Health Sciences, LaTrobe University. Abbottsford Victoria, Australia.

Long-Term Care Policy in the United States (1989). Seminar. Australian Department of Community Services and Health.

Economic and Social Policy and the Retired (1989). Seminar. Australian Department of Social Security.

Diversity in Policies for the Elderly: Avoiding the Positive and Negative Stereotypes (1989). Lecture. National Centre for Epidemiology and Population Health. Australian National University.

Education, Volunteerism, and Leisure (1988). Annual Conference, Massachusetts Gerontology Association.

Self-Advocacy and Empowerment (1988). Annual Conference, LIFE (Living Is For the Elderly).

Learning: A Lifelong Journey (1988). Governor Dukakis' 6th Annual Conference on Aging.

The Future of Long Term Care (1988). Moderator. Executive Office of Elder Affairs Conference.

Home Health Care: An Impact Assessment (1988). Poster session. 41st Annual Meeting, Gerontological Society of America.

Volunteerism in America (1988). Chair. 41st Annual Meeting, Gerontological Society of America.

The Social Impact of Access Problems on the Elderly and Their Families (1987). Keynote speaker. Massachusetts Long Term Care Foundation and American College of Health Care Administrators.

The Impact of DRGs: Facing the Challenge Together (1987). Opening Address. Boston Commission on Affairs of the Elderly.

Rethinking the Nursing Home System: Access, Quality, Financing (1987). Plenary session. Gerontology Program and Institute. University of Massachusetts Boston.

Institutional Change in Gerontology (1986). Seminar. Institution for Social and Policy Studies, Yale University.

The State of Massachusetts' Current Process to Examine Reform of the Nursing Home System (1986). Working Group on Health Policy and Aging Seminar, Harvard University.

Income and Poverty (1986). Paper session, co-chair. Gerontological Society of America, 39th Annual Meeting.

An Overview of Social Gerontology (1986). Keynote Speaker. 3rd Annual Pastoral Seminar on Aging.

Family Support Systems: Accessing Nursing Homes (1986). Moderator. The U. S. Administration on Aging, 8th Annual Aging Network Training Meeting.

Aging Around the World (1986). Moderator. Governor Dukakis' 4th Annual Conference on Aging.

Generational Issues of the Family (1985). Moderator. Governor Dukakis' 3rd Annual Conference on Aging.

Policy Issues for 1985 (1985). Facilitator. Massachusetts Association of Older Americans, Annual Conference.

Support for Family Care Givers (1984). Presenter. Governor Dukakis' 2nd Annual Conference on Aging.

Special Concerns of Minority Elderly (1984). Moderator. University of Massachusetts Boston, CPCS, Gerontology Program, Spring Conference.

Longevity: Ethical Dimensions and Social Implications (1984). Presenter. First Annual Gerontology Institute at the University Center on Aging Presenter.

Families Caring for Their Elderly at Home (1982). Presenter. University of Massachusetts Boston, CPCS, Gerontology Program, Spring Conference.

Telecommunications and the Elderly (1982). Presenter. University of Massachusetts Educational Telecommunications Conference.,

Families Caring for their Elderly at Home (1982). Panelist. University of Massachusetts Boston, Teleconference.

Impact of Federal Cutbacks on Families (1982). Presenter. Massachusetts Council of Human Service Providers, Annual Conference.

Energy and the Poor: Innovative Approaches (1982). Moderator. National Conference on Social Welfare.

Networking in Human Services (1981). Presenter. New England Conference on Networking in Human Services.

Networking in Human Services (1980). Presenter. Massachusetts Association of Older Americans, Annual Meeting.

Community Psychology (1978). Lecturer. Cornell University, Family Life Development Center.

Voluntary Desegregation in Lawrence, MA: A Perspective of a Community Psychologist (1977). Lecturer. Yale University, Institution for Social Policy Studies.

Radio and Television Presentations

Loan Rules Tighten, Universities Lose Access To Major Fund. WUSA9 TV and Web (2008)

Roles for Older People Prime Time, PBS Radio with Diane Rehm. (1994)

The Politics of Aging. The Clapprood Show, New England Cable News-TV. (1992)

Productive Aging Survey Findings. NBC Radio, National. (1992)

Productive Aging Survey Findings. CNN Radio, National. (1992)

Productive Aging Survey Findings. AARP Mature Focus Radio, National. (1992)

The Harley David Morning Show. WCNT Radio, Charlotte, NC. (1990)

Focus: The Sandwich Generation. NBC News. (1990)

Weeklong series on Retirement. WCVB-TV News. (1990)

Frank Manning: His Work in the Education of Older People. Moderator. Boston Cable TV. (1988)

Live to be 100. Consultant. WCVB-TV, Chronicle. (1988)

A Tribute to Frank J. Manning. Gavel to Gavel. WGBX-TV. (1988)

Educational Opportunities for Older People. Guest panelist. WBZ-TV, Prime Time, (1987)

Older People and Their Capabilities. News. WCVB-TV. (1987)

The Gerontology Program and Institute at UMass Boston. Interview and feature. Modern Maturity. PBS-TV. (1987)

Higher Education and Older People. Guest panelist. Randolph, MA Cable TV. (1987)

The Long-Term Care System. Interview. News. WCVB-TV. (1987)

Nursing Home Placement. Advisor. News Special. WNEV-TV. (1987)

Home Health Care. Interview. News. WCVB-TV. (1987)

Older Learners. Interview. Somerville, MA Cable TV. (1987)

Access to Nursing Homes. Panelist. WNTN Radio. (1986)

Access to Nursing Homes. Speaker. Massachusetts State House Press Conference. (1986)

New England Today. Guest panelist. WLVI-TV. (1985)

What to Do about Mom and Dad. Advisor. Frontline. Public Broadcasting Service. (1985)

Economic Roles for the Elderly. Featured Speaker. National Public Radio. (1985)

Aging in Massachusetts. Panelist. Channel 7 News. WNEV-TV. (1985)

Aging: Everybody Is Doing It. Panelist. Good Day!, WCVB-TV. (1984)

Educational Programs for Seniors. Guest Speaker. Prime Time. WBZ-TV. (1984)

Concerns of the Elderly. Guest Speaker. Quincy, MA Cable TV. (1984)

Also, frequently cited in the print media including the *Baltimore Sun*, *Boston Globe*, *New York Times*, *Los Angeles Times*, *Wall Street Journal*, *Chicago Sun Times*, and Boston metropolitan newspapers.

Films

Old Warrior (1994). Creator/consultant. WGBH, film on Frank Manning produced and directed by Josh Seftel (Winner of the National Media Owl Award, 1995 and Emmy Award Nominee, 1994).

Frank Manning Story (1993). Executive producer. Video produced and directed by Josh Seftel.

SELECTED SERVICE

Selected University Service Prior to American University

University of Maryland, Baltimore County

Chair, Dean's Search, College of Engineering and Information Technology (2006)

Chair, Dean's Search, College of Natural and Mathematical Sciences (2005)

Chair, Natural Sciences Cluster Planning Committee (2004 – 2005)

Chair, Social Sciences Cluster Planning Committee (2004-2005)

Chair, Business Systems Administrator, Search Committee (2004)

Chair, Assistant/Associate Vice Provost for Research, Search Committee

Executive Board, Center for Advanced Studies in Photonics Research (2003-2008)

Planning Leadership Team Planning Work Group (2003-2008)

Planning Leadership Team Task Force on Undergraduate and Graduate Enrollment (2003-2008)

Planning Leadership Team Research Infrastructure Task Force (2003-2008)

UMBC DELTA Initiative Coordinating Committee (2001-2008)

Executive Board, Joint Center for Astrophysics (2001-2008)

University System of Maryland, Council on Research & Graduate Education (2000-2003)

Executive Board, Goddard Earth Sciences Technology Center (GEST) (2000-2008)

Executive Committee, Center for Urban Environmental Research & Education (CUERE) (2000-2008)

UMBC Research Council (2000-2008)

University System of Maryland, Strategic Planning Committee (2000)

University System of Maryland, Federal Relations Council (2000)

UMBC Planning Leadership Team (Strategic Planning) (1999-present)

UMBC Task Force on Research Culture and Environment (1999-2000)

Enrollment Management Task Force (1998)

Ph.D. in Gerontology Committee (1998)

Master's in Gerontology Committee (1998)

Advisory Committee, Epidemiology of Aging Training Program (1997-2008)

Committee on University Research Infrastructure, Department of Epidemiology & Preventive Medicine, School of Medicine, University of Maryland, Baltimore (1997-present)

Institute for Racial & Ethnic Health Studies, CHPDM (1997-2003)

UMBC President's Council (1996-2008)

UMBC Provost's Council (1996-2008)

Budget Committee (1996-2008)

Faculty Senate (1996-2008)

Academic Planning and Budget Committee (1996-2008)

Co-chair, Graduate Council, University of Maryland Graduate School, Baltimore (1996-2008)

Chair, Committee of Graduate Program Directors Marketing Task Force (1996-2008)

Executive Board, Joint Center for Earth Systems Technology (JCET) (1996-2008)

University of Massachusetts Boston

University Research Professor Selection Committee (1996)

University Faculty Council (1992-1996)

Graduate Studies Committee (1985-1996

Healey Endowment Grant Committee (1994)

Reviewer, Environmental Sciences Ph.D. Program (1994)

Co-Chair, Health Policy in Aging Search Committee (1994)

Mission Statement Committee, University Accreditation Review (1993-1994)

Chancellor's Committee on University Health Services (1992-1993)

Planning Committee, Master's in Gerontology (1993)

CPCS Personnel Board and Committee (1989-1991)

Public Service Grant Review Committee (1987-1991)

Faculty Professional Development Review Committee (1991)

Summer Faculty Research Grant Review Committee (1991)

Demographer Search Committee (1990)

Provost's Committee on University Urban Mission (1990)

Center for Survey Research Planning Committee (1989)

CPCS Library Planning Committee (1989)

Chair, Public Policy Division Director, Search Committee (1988)

Chair, Editor/Publications Coordinator, Search Committee (1988)

Chair, Research and Program Specialist, Search Committee (1988)

Chair, Research Division Director, Search Committee (1988)

Chair, Public and Community Service Task Force, College Review (1987-1988)

Chair, Ph.D. in Gerontology Proposal Committee (1985-1986)

Selected Professional and Public Service

Journal Editor

Co-Editor, Journal of Aging & Social Policy (1989-1997)

Editorial Boards

Editorial Board, Journal of Aging & Social Policy (1998-present)

Editorial Board, Research on Aging (1985-2011)

Editorial Board, Journal of Gerontology: Social Sciences (2006-2007)

Editorial Board, Educational Gerontology (1989-1990)

Reviewer

Reviewer, *Journal of Aging & Social Policy* (2007, 2006, 2003, 2002, 2000)

Reviewer, *The Gerontologist* (2015, 2007, 2001-2005, 1998-1999, 1993-1994)

Reviewer, Journal of Urban Health (2006)

Reviewer, Research on Aging (2006, 2003, 2002, 1995)

Reviewer, The International Journal of Aging and Human Development (2005, 2003)

Reviewer, University of Notre Dame Press (2005)

Reviewer, Lawrence Erlbaum Associates (2005)

Reviewer, The Johns Hopkins University Press (2005)

Reviewer, Journal of Gerontology: Social Sciences (2002-2007)

Reviewer, Journal of Applied Gerontology (2001)

Reviewer, Oxford University Press (2000)

Abstract Reviewer, Gerontological Society of America (GSA) (1991-1996)

Reviewer, Journal of Cross-Cultural Gerontology (1993)

Board Memberships

Member, National Advisory Board for the American Society for Engineering Education's (ASEE's) Engineering Deans Advancing Gender Equity ADVANCE project (2018-Present)

Member, Advisory Committee, Council of Graduate Schools Project to Enhance Financial Education of Graduate and Undergraduate Students (supported by TIAA-CREF) (2013-2014)

Member, Educational Testing Service, Graduate Record Examinations (2006-2010)

Executive Committee & Chair, Minority Graduate Education Committee, Educational Testing Service, Graduate Record Examinations (2007-2010)

Member, Commission on the Future of Graduate Education in the United States, a Joint Commission of the Educational Testing Service and the Council of Graduate Studies (2009-2010)

Executive Committee, Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education (2006-2008)

Executive Committee Chair, Council on Research Policy and Graduate Education (2008)

Board of Directors, Council of Graduate Schools (2004-2006)

Executive Board, Northeastern Association of Graduate Schools (2002-2004)

Board of Directors, Maryland/Israel Development Center (1999-2005)

Honorary Board, Massachusetts Association of Older Americans (1988-1993)

National Advisory Board, North Carolina Center for Creative Retirement, University of North Carolina at Asheville (1989-1991)

Professional Service

Reviewer. New England Association of Schools and Colleges. Review on standards for Brandeis University (2018)

Washington Research Library Consortium Chair (WRLC) (2016)

Educational Testing Service Higher Education Advisory Council (HEAC) (2010-2012)

Member. Council of Graduate Schools, Professional Science Master's Project Team (2010-present)

Consultant. University of Denver, Association of Gerontology in Higher Education. Consultancy on establishing an aging center and a series of aging academic programs (2011)

National Institute on Aging Behavioral and Social Research Program, NIA Roybal Centers for Translational Research on Aging Program Review (2007)

University of North Texas Research Review (2007)

Council of Graduate Schools, Membership Committee (2007)

Council of Graduate Schools, Dissertation Award Selection Committee (2006)

Judge, AARP, Best Employers for Workers Over 50 (2006)

Texas Tech University Graduate School Review (2006)

Committee Member, Data Panel, National Academy of Sciences (2006)

Georgia State Graduate Studies Review (2005)

Steering Committee Member, Washington State University, Geographic Information Systems Laboratory. National survey aimed at identifying the spatial implications of successful aging (2004)

Member, Council of Graduate Schools, Investment Committee (2004-2006)

Member, Expert Work Group on Civic Engagement in an Older America. The Gerontological Society of America. (2004-2008)

Member, University of Maryland University College Gerontology Advisory Board (2003-2005)

Member, National Research Council Steering Committee on Aging & Technology (2002-2003)

Facilitator, Baltimore Metropolitan Council Vision 2030 Project (2002)

Member, Advisory Board, National Survey of Graduate Assistant Stipends (2002)

Member, University Technology Development Fund Technical Advisory Committee, Maryland Technology Development Corporation (2000-2008)

Member, Management & Efficiency Project Review Committee of the Greater Baltimore Committee and GBC President's Roundtable (2000)

Graduate Program Reviewer, Miami University of Ohio Department of Sociology, Gerontology and Anthropology (2000)

Consultant, State of the World Forum, The Hartford Foundation (1999-2000)

Member, AGHE Undergraduate Scholarship Advisory Committee (1999-2000)

Consultant, The Retirement Research Foundation Committee for Economic Development (1999-2000)

Maryland/Israel Development Center Trade Mission to Israel (1999-2000)

Chair, Subcommittee on Community-Based Services, Baltimore County Department of Aging, Plan 2000 Committee (1998-1999)

Member, Association for Gerontology in Higher Education, GSA-AGHE Advisory Committee, Public Policy Committee and Program Development Committee (1997-1998)

Member, International Federation on Ageing Advisor, Productive Aging Center, Brown School of Social Work, Washington University (1997)

Member, Class of 1997, Baltimore City - Greater Baltimore Committee's Leadership Program (1996-1997)

Advisory Committee, National Institute on Consumer-Directed Home and Community Based Care Systems (1995-1997)

International Advisory Panel, Queensland University of Technology (Australia), Research Concentration in Gerontology (1994-1995)

Subcommittee on Older Workers, Massachusetts Job Council (1993-1996)

Chair, Association for Gerontology in Higher Education (AGHE) Public Policy Committee (1992-1995)

Association for Gerontology in Higher Education Executive Committee (elected – three-year term, then appointed), AGHE Long Range Planning Committee, AGHE Site Selection Committee, Local Arrangements Committee (1990-1997)

Minority Issues Task Force, Gerontological Society of America (1989-1997)

Chair, GSA Fellowship Committee (1991-1992)

Chair, Association for Gerontology in Higher Education Standards Committee (1990-1992)

Planning Committee, Tribute to Congressman Tip O'Neill (1988-1989)

Planning Committee, Health Care for All (1987-1988)

Founding Member, Minority Elder Coalition (1985-1987)

Chair, Massachusetts Department of Elder Affairs Professional Advisory Board (1984)